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Section X: Appendices



1 - New York State: Research with Human Subjects Who Lack Consent Capacity New York State Task Force on Life and the Law, January 2014 REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR RESEARCH WITH HUMAN SUBJECTS WHO LACK CONSENT CAPACITY
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2 - New York State Law: Public Health PBH Article 24-A - Protection of Human Subjects PBH - Public Health Article 24-A - PROTECTION OF HUMAN SUBJECTS http://public.leginfo.state.ny.us/lawssrch.cgi?NVLWO: 2440 - Policy and purpose. 2441 - Definitions. 2442 - Informed consent. 2443 - Conduct of human research. 2444 - Human research review committees. 2445 - Applicability. 2446 - Rules and regulations. § 2440. Policy and purpose. The use of human subjects in medical research projects has brought about many beneficial scientific advances resulting in the increased health and wellbeing of the human race. Safeguarding the rights and welfare of individual human subjects in the conduct of these human research projects is a matter of vital state concern. Every human being has the right to be protected against the possible conduct of medical or psychological research upon his body without his voluntary informed consent. Human research may effect dangerous and unanticipated results causing irreversible damage to the human subject. Accordingly, it shall be the policy of this state to protect its people against the unnecessary and improper risk of pain, suffering or injury resulting from human research conducted without their knowledge or consent. § 2441. Definitions. For the purposes of this article: 1. "Human Subject" shall mean any individual who may be exposed to the possibility of injury, including physical, psychological or social injury, as a consequence of participation as a subject in any research, development, or related activity which departs from the application of those established and accepted methods necessary to meet his needs or which increases the ordinary risk of daily life including the recognized risks inherent in a chosen occupation or field of service. 2. "Human research" means any medical experiments, research, or scientific or psychological investigation, which utilizes human subjects and which involves physical or psychological intervention by the investigator upon the body of the subject and which is not required for the purposes of obtaining information for the diagnosis, prevention, or treatment of disease or the assessment of medical condition for the direct benefit of the subject. Human research shall not, however, be construed to mean the conduct of biological studies exclusively utilizing tissue or fluids after their removal or withdrawal from a human subject in the course of standard medical practice, or to include epidemiological investigations. 182



3. "Fluid" means a normal body excretion or any fluid formed by normal or pathological body processes obtained during diagnostic or therapeutic procedures conducted for the benefit of the human subject. 4. "Tissue" means part or all of any organ of a human subject removed during a diagnostic or therapeutic procedure conducted for the benefit of the human subject. 5. "Voluntary informed consent" means the legally effective knowing consent of an individual or his legally authorized representative, so situated as to be able to exercise free power of choice without undue inducement or any element of force, fraud, deceit, duress or other form of constraint or coercion. With regard to the conduct of human research, the basic elements of information necessary to such consent include: (a) a fair explanation to the individual of the procedures to be followed, and their purposes, including identification of any procedures which are experimental; (b) a description of any attendant discomforts and risks reasonably to be expected; (c) a description of any benefits reasonably to be expected; (d) a disclosure of any appropriate alternative procedures that might be advantageous for the individual; (e) an offer to answer any inquiries by the individual concerning the procedures; and (f) an instruction that the individual is free to withdraw his consent and to discontinue participation in the human research at any time without prejudice to him. 6. "Researcher" means any person licensed under title VIII of the education law to perform diagnosis, treatment, medical services, prescription or therapeutic exercises with regard to or upon human beings, or any other person deemed appropriately competent and qualified by a human research review committee as provided by section twenty-four hundred forty-four of this chapter. § 2442. Informed consent. No human research may be conducted in this state in the absence of the voluntary informed consent subscribed to in writing by the human subject. If the human subject be a minor, such consent shall be subscribed to in writing by the minor's parent or legal guardian. If the human subject be otherwise legally unable to render consent, such consent shall be subscribed to in writing by such other person as may be legally empowered to act on behalf of the human subject. No such voluntary informed consent shall include any language through which the human subject waives, or appears to waive, any of his legal rights, including any release of any individual, institution or agency, or any agents thereof, from liability for negligence. § 2443. Conduct of human research. No one except a researcher shall conduct human research in this state.
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§ 2444. Human research review committees. 1. Each public or private institution or agency which conducts, or which proposes to conduct or authorize, human research, shall establish a human research review committee. Such committee shall be composed of not fewer than five persons, approved by the commissioner, who have such varied backgrounds as to assure the competent, complete and professional review of human research activities conducted or proposed to be conducted or authorized by the institution or agency. No member of a committee shall be involved in either the initial or continuing review of an activity in which he has a conflicting interest, except to provide information required by the committee. No committee shall consist entirely of persons who are officers, employees, or agents of, or who are otherwise associated with the institution or agency, apart from their membership on the committee, and no committee shall consist entirely of members of a single professional group. 2. The human research review committee in each institution or agency shall require that institution or agency to promulgate a statement of principle and policy in regard to the rights and welfare of human subjects in the conduct of human research, and the committee and the commissioner shall approve that statement prior to its taking effect. The committee shall review each proposed human research project to determine (1) its necessity; (2) that the rights and welfare of the human subjects involved are adequately protected; (3) that the risks to the human subjects are outweighed by the potential benefits to them or by the importance of the knowledge to be gained; (4) that the voluntary informed consent is to be obtained by methods that are adequate and appropriate; and (5) that the persons proposed to conduct the particular medical research are appropriately competent and qualified. The committee shall periodically examine each existing human research project with regard to the proper application of the approved principles and policies which the institution or agency has promulgated. The committee shall report any violation to the commissioner. In addition to the voluntary informed consent of the proposed human subject as required by section twenty-four hundred forty-two of this chapter, the consent of the committee and the commissioner shall be required with relation to the conduct of human research involving minors, incompetent persons, mentally disabled persons, and prisoners. 3. Each person engaged in the conduct of human research or proposing to conduct human research shall affiliate himself with an institution or agency having a human research review committee, and such human research as he conducts or proposes to conduct shall be subject to review by such committee in the manner set forth in this section. § 2445. Applicability. The provisions of this article shall not apply to the conduct of human research which is subject to, and which is in compliance with, policies and regulations promulgated by any agency of the federal government for the protection of human subjects. § 2446. Rules and regulations. The commissioner shall have the power to promulgate such rules and regulations as shall be necessary and proper to effectuate the purposes of this article.
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3 - New York State Law: Public Health PBH Article 29-CC - Family Health Care Decisions Act PBH - Public Health Article 29-CC - FAMILY HEALTH CARE DECISIONS ACT http://public.leginfo.state.ny.us/lawssrch.cgi?NVLWO: 2994-A - Definitions. 2994-B - Applicability; priority of certain other surrogate decision-making laws and regulations. 2994-C - Determination of incapacity. 2994-D - Health care decisions for adult patients by surrogates. 2994-E - Decisions about life-sustaining treatment for minor patients. 2994-F - Obligations of attending physician. 2994-G - Health care decisions for adult patients without surrogates. 2994-I - Specific policies for orders not to resuscitate. 2994-J - Revocation of consent. 2994-K - Implementation and review of decisions. 2994-L - Interinstitutional transfers. 2994-M - Ethics review committees. 2994-N - Conscience objections. 2994-O - Immunity. 2994-P - Liability for health care costs. 2994-Q - Effect on other rights. 2994-R - Special proceeding authorized; court orders; health care guardian for minor patient. 2994-S - Remedy. 2994-T - Regulations. 2994-U - Rights to be publicized.
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4 - New York State Law: Mental Hygiene MHY Article 81 - Proceedings for Appointment of a Guardian for Personal Needs or Property MHY - Mental Hygiene Article 81 - PROCEEDINGS FOR APPOINTMENT OF A GUARDIAN FOR PERSONAL NEEDS OR PROPERTY http://public.leginfo.state.ny.us/lawssrch.cgi?NVLWO: 81.01 - Legislative findings and purpose. 81.02 - Power to appoint a guardian of the person and/or property; standard for appointment. 81.03 - Definitions. 81.04 - Jurisdiction. 81.05 - Venue. 81.06 - Who may commence a proceeding. 81.07 - Notice. 81.08 - Petition. 81.09 - Appointment of court evaluator. 81.10 - Counsel. 81.11 - Hearing. 81.12 - Burden and quantum of proof. 81.13 - Timing of hearing. 81.14 - Record of the proceedings. 81.15 - Findings. 81.16 - Dispositional alternatives. 81.17 - Nomination of guardian. 81.18 - Foreign guardian for a person not present in the state. 81.19 - Eligibility as guardian. 81.20 - Duties of guardian. 81.21 - Powers of guardian; property management. 81.22 - Powers of guardian; personal needs. 81.23 - Provisional remedies. 81.24 - Notice of pendency. 81.25 - Filing of bond by guardian. 81.26 - Designation of clerk to receive process. 81.27 - Commission to guardian. 81.28 - Compensation of guardian. 81.29 - Effect of the appointment on the incapacitated person. 81.30 - Initial report. 81.31 - Annual report. 81.32 - Examination of initial and annual reports. 81.33 - Intermediate and final report. 81.34 - Decree on filing instruments approving accounts. 186



81.35 - Removal of guardian. 81.36 - Discharge or modification of powers of guardian. 81.37 - Resignation or suspension of powers of guardian. 81.38 - Vacancy in office. 81.39 - Guardian education requirements. 81.40 - Court evaluator education requirements. 81.41 - Court examiner education requirements. 81.42 - Compliance. 81.43 - Proceedings to discover property withheld. 81.44 - Proceedings upon the death of an incapacitated person.
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5 - Examples of Common Educational Tests
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6 - Acronyms The following is an extensive acronym list compiled by IRB professionals, it is provided as a reference tool for The New School community.63 AAHP – American Association of Health Plans, [www.aahp.org] AAHRPP – Association for the Accreditation of Human Research Protections Programs, [www.aahrpp.org] AAMC – Association of American Medical Colleges, [www.aamc.org] AAPOR – American Association for Public Opinion Research, (statement for IRB) [www.aapor.org] AAPP – American Academy of Pharmaceutical Physicians, [aapp.org] ABMS – American Board of Medical Specialties, [www.abms.org] ACC-NCDR – American College of Cardiology National Cardiovascular Data Registry, [www.accncdr.com] ACCME – Accreditation Council for Continuing Medical Education, [www.accme.org] ACCP – American College of Clinical Pharmacy, [www.accp.com] ACE – Affiliated Covered Entity (HIPPA) ACGME – Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education, [www.acgme.org] ACHRE – Advisory Committee on Human Radiation Experiments, [www.eh.doe.gov] ACOSOG – American College of Surgeons Oncology Group, [www.acosog.org] ACR – American College of Radiology, [www.acr.org] ACRIN – American College of Radiology Imaging Network, [www.acrin.org] ACRP – Association of Clinical Research Professionals, [www.acrpnet.org] ACS – American Cancer Society, [www.cancer.org] ACUC – Animal Care and Use Committee AD - Alzheimer's Disease ADAPT – Alzheimer's Disease Anti-Inflammatory Prevention Trial ADE – Adverse Drug Event ADR – Adverse Drug Reaction AE – Adverse Event AED – Automatic External Defibrillator AHA – American Hearth Association, [www.americanheart.org] AHRP – Alliance for Human Research Protection, [www.ahrp.org] AHRQ – Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality, [www.ahcpr.gov] AII – Agreement for an Independent Investigator, [ohrp.osophs.dhhs.gov] AIO – Authorized Institutional Official AMA – American Medical Association, [www.ama-assn.org] 63



Source of list: The IRB Forum, which promotes the discussion of ethical, regulatory and policy concerns with human subjects research, which is hosted by Public Responsibility in Medicine and Research (PRIM&R)
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AOIR – Association of Internet Researchers, [www.aoir.org] APC – Adenoma Prevention with Celebrex (drug trial) APPE – Association for Practical and Professional Ethics, [www.indiana.edu] ARDS – Acute Respiratory Distress Syndrome ARDSNet - Acute Respiratory Distress Syndrome Network, [www.ardsnet.org] ARENA – Applied Research Ethics National Association, www.arena.org/ ARNP – Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioner ARO – Academic Research Organization ASCO – American Society of Clinical Oncology, [www.asco.org] ATTC – Addiction Technology Transfer Center, [www.nattc.org] BA – Business Associate BAA – Business Associate Agreement BCOP – Board Certified Oncology Pharmacist BCP – Birth Control Pills BMA – Board of Medical Examiners (State boards) BN – Bachelor of Nursing BNA – Bureau of National Affairs, [www.bna.com] C/A – Consent/Agreement CA – Cooperative Amendment, [ohrp.osophs.dhhs.gov] CABG – Cardiac/Coronary Artery Bypass Graft CAD – Coronary Atherothrombotic Disease CALGB – Cancer and Leukemia Group B, [www.calgb.org] CAM – Complementary and Alternative Medicine CAREB – Canadian Organization of Research Ethics Boards, [www.careb-accer.ca] CB – Comité de Bioética (Bioethics Committee) CBER – Center for Biologics and Research, [www.fda.gov] CCIP – Council for Certification of IRB Professionals, [www.arena.org] CCG – Children's Cooperative/Cancer Group (now COG), [www.childrensoncologygroup.org] CCOP – Childhood Cancer Ombudsman Program or Community Clinical Oncology Program, [www.childhoodbraintumor.org] CCRC – Certified Clinical Research Coordinator CCRP – The Center for Clinical Research Practice, [www.ccrp.com] CCRN – Childhood Cancer Research Network CCSG – Children’s Cancer Study Group (now known as CCG) CDC – Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, [www.cdc.gov] CDER – Center for Drug Evaluation and Research (US - FDA), [www.fda.gov] CDM – Clinical Data Management. CDN – Clinical Directors Network, [www.cdnetwork.org] CDRH – Center for Devices and Radiological Health (US FDA), [www.fda.gov]
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CE – Covered Entity. Also, Comité de Etica (Spanish for: Ethics Committee; another name for IRB) CEAR – Consultants for Evaluation and Applied Research, [www.cmecear.com] CECRE – The Consortium to Examine Clinical Research Ethics, [cecre.duke.edu] CEIC – Comité Ético de Investigación Clínica (Another name for IRB, Spain), [www.madrid.org] CEO – Chief Executive Officer CER – Comite d'ethique de la recherché (Another name for IRB, Canada), CEU – Continuing Education Unit (nursing equivalent of CMEs for physicians) [www.ncehrcnerh.org] CFR – Code of Federal Regulations (see also CR or Common Rule), [ohrp.osophs.dhhs.gov]] CHA – Canadian Health Association, [www.cpha.ca] CHA – California HealthCare Association, [www.calhealth.org] CHA – Catholic Health Association, [www.chausa.org] In Canada: [www.chac.ca] CHE – Committee on Human Experimentation (Another name for IRB, Canada) CHR – Committee on Human Research (Another name for IRB) CI – Clinical Investigator CID – Comité de Investigación y Docencia (Another name for IRB, Argentina) CIE – Comité Institucional de Etica (Institutional Ethics Committee or Comité Independiente de Etica: Independent Ethics Committee) - (Other names in Spanish for IRB) CIHR – Canadian Institute for Health Research, [www.cihr-irsc.gc.ca] CIM – Certified IRB Manager CIOMS – Council for International Organizations of Medical Sciences, [www.cioms.ch] CIP – Certified IRB Professional CIRB – Commercial IRB; Central Institutional Review Board of NCI, [www.ncicirb.org] CIRCARE – Citizens for Responsible Care and Research, [www.circare.org] CLD – Chronic Lung Disease CLIA – Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act/Amendment CMHS – Center for Mental Health Services/Community Mental Health Services, [www.mentalhealth.org] CMS – Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, [cms.hhs.gov] CME – Continuing Medical Education COC – Certificate of Confidentiality; Conflict of Commitment COG – Cooperative Oncology Groups funded by NCI: See also CCG, COG, ECOG, GOG, RTOG, POG, CALGB, and NABTC COG – Children’s Oncology Group, [www.childrensoncologygroup.org] COGR – Council on Government Relations, [www.cogr.edu] COI – Conflict of Interest COIC – Conflicts of Interest Committee COMI – Confidentiality of Medical Information Act (California, US) CONSORT - Consolidated Standards of Reporting Trials, [www.consort-statement.org] CORIHS – Committee on Research Involving Human Subjects (Another name for IRB) CORP – NIH Council of Public Representatives, [copr.nih.gov] 198



COSA – Committee On Scientific Affairs COX - Cyclooxygenase (COX, COX-1, COX-2) Inhibitors (e.g., Celebrex, Vioxx) CPA – Cooperative Project Assurance, [ohrp.osophs.dhhs.gov] CPC – Clinical Protocol Coordinator CPCS – Certified Provider Credentialing Specialist CPG – Compliance Program Guide (FDA), [www.fda.gov] CPHA – Canadian Public Health Association or CHA, [www.cpha.ca] CPHQ – Certified Professional in Healthcare Quality CPHS – Committee for the Protection of Human Subjects (Another name for IRB) CPR – Cardiopulmonary resuscitation CPT – Current Procedural Technology code CQI – Continuous Quality Improvement CR – Common Rule, [ohrp.osophs.dhhs.gov]] CRA – Clinical Research Associate CRC – Clinical Research Coordinator CRF – Case Report Form CRI – Clinical Research Investigator CRM – Clinical Research Management CRO – Clinical Research Organization/Contract Research Organization CSF – Cerebrospinal Fluid CSM – Committee on Safety of Medicines, UK, [www.mca.gov.uk] CSP – Cooperative Studies Program CSTE - Council of State and Territorial Epidemiologists, [www.cste.org] CTA – Clinical Trials Agreement; Clinical Trials Application (Canada) CTC – Common Terminology Criteria CTCAE - Common Terminology Criteria for Adverse Events v3.0 CTEP – Cancer Therapy Evaluation Program, [ctep.cancer.gov] CTO – Clinical Trials Office CTR – Clinical Trial Registration CTSU – Cancer Trials Support Unit, [www.ctsu.org] CV – Cardiovascular DAIDS – Division of AIDS (see NIAID), [www.niaid.nih.gov] DCD – Donation After Cardiac Death DCO – Director of Clinical Trials DDO – Due Diligence Officer DEXA – Dual Energy X-Ray Absorptiometry DHEC – Department of Health and Environmental Control DHEW – Department of Health, Education and Welfare (no longer exists) DHHS – Department of Health and Human Services (replaced DHEW), [www.hhs.gov] DIA – Drug Information Association, [www.diahome.org] DIC – Data Informed Consent 199



DKA – Diabetic Ketoacidosis DMC – Data Monitoring Committee DOE – Department of Education (US), [www.ed.gov] DOD – Department of Defense (US) DOH – Department of Health (see DHHS) DRC – Departmental Review Committee DRE – Digital Rectal Examination DSHEA – Dietary Supplement Health and Education Act of 1994 (US legislation; FDA) [www.fda.gov] DSI – Division of Scientific Investigations (FDA), [www.fda.gov] DSMB – Data Safety Monitoring Board DSRB – Domain Specific Review Boards (Singapore) DUA – Data Use Agreement DVA – Department of Veterans Affairs DVT – Deep Venous Thrombosis DUA – Data Use Agreement EBM – Evidence-based medicine EDR – Existing Data/Document Review EC – Ethics Committee (Another name for IRB) ECMO – Extracorporeal membrane oxygenation ECOG – Eastern Co-operative Oncology Group, [www.ecog.org] ECRI – Emergency Care Research Institute, [www.aahp.org] EFGCP – European Forum for Good Clinical Practice, [www.efgcp.org] EGFR – Epidermal Growth Factor Receptor EMEA – European Agency for the Evaluation of Medicinal Products, [www.emea.eu.int] EMR – Electronic Medical Record EMS – Emergency Medical Service EP – Electrophysiology EQUIC – Enhancing Quality of Informed Consent ER – Emergency Room EU – European Union – also – “End-User” FAP – Familial Adenomatous Polyposis FDA – Food and Drug Administration, [www.fda.gov] FDCA – Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, [www.fda.gov] FERPA – Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (aka the Buckley Amendment), [www.ed.gov] FDLI – Food and Drug Law Institute, [www.fdli.org] FHPP – Facilities Human Protection Program FI – Fiscal Intermediary FOIA – Freedom of Information Act 200



FPCO – Family Policy Compliance Office, [www.ed.gov] FTE – Full-Time Employee FWA – Federal Wide Assurance GCP – Good Clinical Practice GCRC – General Clinical Research Center GDP – Good Documentation Practices GeMCRIS – Genetic Modification Clinical Research Information System GI – Gastrointestinal or Geographical Information GME – Graduate Medical Education GMP – Good Manufacturing Practice GOG – Gynecologic Oncology Group, [www.gog.org] GPL – General Public License GTSAB – Gene Transfer Safety Assessment Board HAT – At Home Auto External Defibrillation study HBCUs – Historically Black Colleges and Universities HCFA – Health Care Financing Administration (US Health and Human Services Administration), [cms.hhs.gov] HCPCS – Healthcare Current Procedure Coding System HDE – Humanitarian Device Exemption (what a HUD is classified as), see [www.fda.gov] HEC – Hospital Ethics Committee HEC – Human Ethics Committee (IRB, New Zealand) [www.hrc.govt.nz]) HEC – Health Ethics Committee (IRB, Australia), [www.health.gov.au] HEW – Health, Education, and Welfare (US Dept. of Health, Education, and Welfare ( HEX – Human Experimentation Committee (Another name for IRB) HIA – Humanity in Action, [www.humanityinaction.org] HIC – Health Information Center HII – Health Improvement Institute, [www.hii.org] HIPAA – Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, [www.hhs.gov] HIRB – Human Investigation Review Board (Another name for IRB) HIT-6 - Headache Impact Test (HIT-6) HMO – Health Maintenance Organization HPA – Human Protections Administrator HRC – Human Research Committee (Another name for IRB) HREC – Human Research Ethics Committee (Another name for IRB, Australia) HRP – Human Research Protections HRPP – Human Research Protection Programs HRRB – Human Research Review Board, (Another name for IRB) HRRC – Human Research Review Committee, (Another name for IRB) HRT – Hormone Replacement Therapy HSR – Health Services Research/Human Subjects Research 201



HSP – Human Subjects Protection HSPP – Human Subject Protection Program HSRB – Human Subjects Review Board (Another name for IRB) HTN – Hypertension HUD – Humanitarian Use Device IAA – IRB Authorization Agreement IACUC – Institutional Animal Care and Use Committee, [www.iacuc.org] IB – Investigator’s Brochure IBC – Institutional Biosafety Committee or Institutional Biohazard Committee (needed in gene transfer research, see [www4.od.nih.gov]). IBC – Inflammatory Breast Cancer ICD – Informed Consent Document ICD – International Classification of Diseases, [www.who.int] ICD registry – Implantable Cardioverter-Defibrilator ICF – Individual Consent Form or Institutional Consent Form ICH – International Conference on Harmonization of Technical Requirements for Registration of Pharmaceuticals, [www.ich.org] ICH-GCP – International Conference on Harmonization – Good Clinical Practice, [www.ncehrcnerh.org] ICMJE – International Committee of Medical Journal Editors, [www.icmje.org] ICS – Informed Consent Statements/inhaled corticosteroids ICU – Intensive Care Unit IDB – Investigator's Drug Brochure IDE – Investigational Device Exemption IDSMB – Independent Data Safety Monitoring Boards IEC – Institutional Ethics Committee/Independent Ethics Committee IIA – Individual Investigator Agreement, [www.hhs.gov] IIA – Interinstitutional Amendment, [ohrp.osophs.dhhs.gov] IIHI – Individually Identifiable Health Information (Regs.: 160.103) IND – Investigational New Drug (application) IO – Institutional Official IOM – Institute of Medicine, [www.iom.edu] IPPC – International Pharmaceutical Privacy Consortium IRB – Institutional Review Board (see other names for IRB) IRC – Independent Review Consulting, [www.irb-irc.com] (Also, Investigational Review Committee; Institutional Review Committee; Internal Review Committee) IREB – Institutional Research Ethics Board (Another name for IRB) IRRC – Institutional Research Review Committee/Individual Risk Reduction Counseling IRSG – Intergroup Rhabdomyosarcoma Study Group ISRCTN Register - International Standard Randomized Controlled Trial Number, [isrctn.com] 202



IVUS – Intravascular Ultrasound JCAHO – Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations, [www.jcaho.org] JIT – Just in Time (procedure) JUMBO – Joint Utilization of Medications to Block platelets Optimally LAR – Legally Authorized Representative LCME – Liaison Committee for Medical Education, [www.lcme.org] LDS – Limited Data Set LEP – Limited English Proficiency LOA – Leave of Absence LTF – Long-Term Facilitation/Long-Term Fellowship, [www.hfsp.org] LTF Subjects – Lost to Follow-up Subjects MEC – Medical Executive Committee MEDRA - Multilingual European DOI Registration Agency, [reg.medra.org] MHRA – The Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency, UK, [www.mhra.gov.uk] MHSA – Master of Health Services Administration (graduate degree) MI – Myocardial Infarction (heart attack) MOH – Medical Officer of Health MOU – Memorandum of understanding MPA – Multiple Project Assurance, [ohrp.osophs.dhhs.gov] MREC – Medical Research and Evaluation Committee (Another name for IRB) MRSA – Methicillin-Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus MSA – Master of Science in Administration MSM – Men who have Sex with Men MSN – Master of Science in Nursing MSO – Medical Staff Office MSPH – Master of Science in Public Health MTA – Material Transfer Agreement MUHC – McGill University Health Centre, [www.muhcfoundation.com] NABTC – North American Brain Tumor Consortium, [www.nabtc.org] NAIM – National Association of IRB Managers, [www.naim.org] NAIAD – National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases, [www.niaid.nih.gov] NAIAD – Nerve Agent Immobilized Enzyme Alarm & Detector NARAC – North American Rheumatoid Arthritis Consortium, [www.arthritis.org] NBAC – National Bioethics Advisory Commission, [www.bioethics.gov] NCCN – National Comprehensive Cancer Network, [www.nccn.org] NCAM – National Center for Complementary and Alternative Medicine, [nccam.nih.gov] NCCTG – North Central Cancer Treatment Group, [ncctg.mayo.edu] NCD – National Council on Disability, [www.ncd.gov] 203



NCHICA – North Carolina Healthcare Information and Communications Alliance, [www.nchica.org] NCI – National Cancer Institute, [www.nci.nih.gov] NCIC CTG – National Cancer Institute of Canada Clinical Trial Group, [www.ncic.cancer.ca] NCPHSBBR – National Commission for the Protection of Human Subjects of Biomedical and Behavioral Research NCQA – National Committee for Quality Assurance (currently responsible for accreditation of VA research programs), [www.ncqa.org] NCRR – National Center for Research Resources, a component of NIH, [www.ncrr.nih.gov] NDA – New Drug Application NDC – National Coverage Determination (Medicare) [www.cms.hhs.gov] NEJM – New England Journal of Medicine NHSR – Not Human Subject Research NHRPAC – National Human Research Protections Advisory Committee, [ohrp.osophs.dhhs.gov] NIA – Nonaffiliated Investigator Agreement/Noninstitutional Investigator Agreement, [ohrp.osophs.dhhs.gov] NIAID – National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases, [www.niaid.nih.gov] NICE – National Institute for National Excellence, [www.nice.org.uk] NICU – Neonatal Intensive Care Unit NIDPOE Letters – Notice of Initiation of Disqualification Proceedings and Opportunity to Explain, [www.fda.gov] NIH – National Institutes of Health, [www.nih.gov] NLST – National Lung Screening Trial, [www.nci.nih.gov] NME – New Molecular Entities (FDA, New Drug Approval Reports) NOK – Next of Kin NOPR – National Oncologic PET Registry, [interactive.snm.org] NPP – Notice of Privacy Practices (HIPPA related) NPWC – National Placebo Working Committee (Canada) NSABP – National Surgical Adjuvant Breast & Bowel Project, [www.nsabp.pitt.edu] NSAID – Non-Steroid Anti-Inflammatory Drug NSR – Non significant Risk NRMI – National Registry of Myocardial Infarction, [www.nrmi.org] NWTSG – National Wilms' Tumor Study Group, [www.nwtsg.org] OA – Osteoarthritis OBA – Office of Biotechnology Activities, [www4.od.nih.gov] OB-GYN – Obstetrics-Gynecology OCR – Office of Civil Liberties/Civil Rights, [www.hhs.gov] OG – Oncology Group OHCA – Organized Health Care Arrangement (HIPPA) OHRO – Office of Human Research Oversight (VHA) OHRP – Office of Human Research Protections (formerly OPRR), [ohrp.osophs.dhhs.gov] 204



OLAW – Office of Laboratory Animal Welfare (NIH), [grants1.nih.gov] OLES – Open Label Extension Studies OMB – Office of Management and Budget, [www.whitehouse.gov] OPRR – Office for Protection from Research Risks, [ohsr.od.nih.gov] OPT – Office of Pediatric Therapeutics, [www.fda.gov] OR – Operating Room ORA – Office of Regulatory Affairs/Office of Research Administration, [www.fda.gov] ORCA – Office of Research Compliance & Assurance (Veterans Health Administration), [www.va.gov] ORD – Office of Research and Development (VA), [www.va.gov] ORI – Office of Research Integrity, [ori.dhhs.gov] OS/ - Office of the Secretary (there are several. See [www.hhs.gov]) OSHA – Occupational Safety and Health Administration, [www.osha.gov] OT – Occupational Therapists OTC – Over The Counter (medications that do not require a physician’s prescription) PA-C – Physician Assistant - Certified PAC – Pediatric Advisory Committee, [www.fda.gov] PACTG – Pediatric Aids Clinical Trials Group PAD Trial – The Public Access Defibrillation trial, [depts.washington.edu] PB – Privacy Board PCI – Prostate Cancer Initiative, [www.cancer.org] PCP – Primary Care Physician PCR – Polymerase Chain Reaction (technique to replicate fragment of DNA for genetic analysis) PCT – Placebo Control Trials PCRCT – Placebo Control Randomized Clinical Trial PD – Program Director PDR – Physician’s Desk Reference PDUFA – Prescription Drug User Fee Act of 1992 PedCIRB – Pediatric Central Institutional Review Board (NCI) PFO – Patent Foramen Ovale PhRMA – Pharmaceutical Research and Manufacturers of America, [www.phrma.org] PHI – Private Healthcare Information/Public Health Information/Protected Health Information (See Regs: 164.501 for Protected Health Information). PHRP – Partnership for Human Research Protection, [www.phrp.org] PHS – Public Health Service (see also USPHS – United States Public Health Service), [www.hhs.gov] PI – Principal Investigator -- Process Improvement PIC – Peripheral Intravenous Catheter P&P – Policies and Procedures PM – Project Manager PMA – Pre-Market Approval 205
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